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INTRODUCTION
Business plans need to reflect a realistic and achievable business idea.  When considering a business, think about what you are passionate about and that you enjoy.  Your skills, knowledge, and expertise play an important role in the success or failure of the business you propose.  

The Business Idea:   The first step in planning your business is to understand the main areas of business.
Think of your business plan as a three-legged stool.  

· One leg is you – what you bring into the business in products, services, and experience.  

· The second leg is your market or customers.  Your market or customers should be a good match with your products, services, and experience.  
· The third leg is financing or money.  Your business needs a match between the costs of your products or services and the operation of the business day-to-day.  All three legs of the stool need to go together for the stool to stand.  The business idea you describe here may go through several changes as you complete this planner.
WHY WRITE A BUSINESS PLAN
Poor management and lack of planning are responsible for 90% of business failures.  Here is a list of things that can make your business successful!

· Knowing the costs

· Pricing properly

· Planning cash flow in advance

· Monitoring costs

· Controlling growth

· Knowing the businesses financial position at all times.

The business plan is the road map for the business to follow.  If you were going on a trip you wouldn’t just jump in the car and go.  You’d look at a map to see what roads to take, fill up with gas, and check the map and level of gas along the way.   Running a business is no different, you need to follow your map (business plan) and watch you tank (bank account).  A business plan is the road map to success and profit. 
Unfortunately, 7 out of 10 new businesses will likely survive for only two years and half will likely survive for only five years...staggering statistics!
The business plan serves 3 purposes:

1. The guide for opening a new business

2. Vital to obtain financing, when required

3. Provides a complete management format

The business plan should consist of Four Major sections:

1. Business Description 

2. Marketing Plan

3. Organizational Plan

4. Financial Plan
The Major sections are supplemented by:

1. Executive Summary

2. Financial Data
3. Attachments

FEASIBILITY CONSIDERATIONS
Business plans need to reflect a feasible business idea. Your skills and knowledge play an important role in the success or failure of the business your purpose.  A feasible business plan will address each of the following five feasibility considerations:
1. CASH FLOW – Your business must make money

2. CHARACTER – You need to be the expert on your business

3. CREDIT – Your credit background is important

4. CASH – You must put cash in your business 
5. COLLATERAL – Lenders want security for the funds
ESTIMATE PROJECT COSTS

	
	Start-up
	Monthly             

	Inventory (needed for resale or production)
	           
	                   

	Advertising (initial expense for cards, brochures, grand opening)         
	       
	 

	Delivery and travel (for trade shows, find materials)
	 
	         

	Insurance (deposits, prepaid accounts, bonding)
	        
	 

	Accounting & legal fees (agreements, contracts, books)
	 
	 

	Office and operating supplies (pens, paper, register tape)
	 
	          

	Dues and subscriptions (organizational dues)
	                    
	 

	Postage (Marketing and freight)
	 
	 

	Telephone (installation, telephone sets, service)
	                              
	 

	Rent (deposits and/or last month rent)
	 
	 

	Repairs and maintenance (of equipment, machinery, buildings                      
	                             
	 

	Supplies (Furniture and fixtures)
	 
	 

	Taxes and Licenses (Property and business licenses)
	 
	 

	Utilities (deposits and installation)
	                              
	 

	Land (real estate purchased)                          
	 
	 

	Building (acquisition of building for business)                                      
	                             
	 

	Contract services (engineers, cleaning service, and training)    
	 
	 

	TOTAL COSTS
	 
	 


 Will you need to borrow money?  NO ___  YES ___  HOW MUCH   ________________

COVER PAGE
The cover page of the business plan should be professional and have your logo

Be sure to have this contact information on the cover or front page.  

Make sure your contact information is easy to find and read

Name of Business

Name of Business Owner

Physical Address
Phone/Email
Web address 
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Because it gives the reader an overview of your business and indicates how your business plan is organized, the Executive Summary is usually written after all the other sections of your business plan are completed.
Many investors or lending institutions like to review a short summary; therefore, your objective in the Executive Summary is to convince them to study your plan further.  It should describe all the key elements of your business plan in just one page (a three minute elevator speech) It should include the following information: 
Summary of the business  
· Give the name and address of the business, and the type of business, your product or service, and name(s) of the owner.
Summary marketing plan  
· Describe the potential market, how you will attract customer, and be better than your competition.
Summarize your organization plan
· Describe the management qualifications, legal structure and business goals.
Request for financing
· The total amount of the project and purpose of the funding, how much you will be investing, amount of requested financing, and names of lending institutes. 
BUSINESS DESCRIPTION
Name:  Business Name, business entity search http://sos.mt.gov/business/index.asp 
· Address
· Type of Business

· Date Founded

Mission: http://www.missionstatements.com/company_mission_statements.html 
· The mission statement is the roadmap for the business.  The mission statement can include:  the purpose of existence, company’s goals, role in the community & environment, ethical practices, shareholders.  

Vision:
http://www.businessnewsdaily.com/3882-vision-statement.html  
· The vision clearly and concisely communicates your overall goals and can serve as a tool for strategic decision-making across the company.  Can be a simple sentence or can span a short paragraph.

Legal Structure:

· Forms of ownership www.sba.gov  
· Sole Proprietorship
· Limited Liability Company
· Corporation
· List all owners and their percentage of ownership
Organizational Structure:

Key Officers:
· Management  (Resume’ attached with work experience) http://resumetemplates.com/ 
· Employees (jobs – as bookkeeper, sales clerk, cook, waitress, etc)
Organizational Chart:

[image: image1]
Core Competencies:

· Owner – Management, Communication, Responsibility, Teamwork
· http://www.uvic.ca/coopandcareer/assets/docs/corecompetencies/Description_of_10_Core_Competencies.pdf  
· Employees – Initiative, Teamwork, Reliability, Judgement, Customer Service
· http://wdrs.fnal.gov/elr/competencies_04.pdf 
Registrations: Make sure to register with these entities
· Registration with State of Montana www.sos.mt.gov 
· DUNS www.dnb.com/get-a-duns-number.html 
· NAICS Code lookup https://www.naics.com/ 
· Federal EIN www.irs.gov/businesses/small
· State tax ID www.mt.gov/revenue
· Unemployment Insurance www.uid.dli.mt.gov
· State Fund for Workers Comp Ins www.montanastatefund.com 
Comply with Employment Rules and Regulations:

· Employment Laws http://dli.mt.gov/resources/laws 
· New Hire Booklet
· Booklet

 HYPERLINK "http://www.dphhs.mt.gov/portals/85/csed/documents/newhirebooklet.pdf" http://www.dphhs.mt.gov/portals/85/csed/documents/newhirebooklet.pdf
· New Hire Reporting System

· https://ejs.hhs.mt.gov:8643/nhrs/nh/index  
· Estimated Taxes www.irs.gov/pub/irs-pdf/f1040es.pdf -if expect to owe $1K
Determine Licenses Requirements: Licenses pertaining to your industry
· Call your local city office and county courthouse for your area

· Professional licenses http://bsd.dli.mt.gov/license/license.asp 

· Independent Contractor www.erd.dli.mt.gov
· Department of Labor and Industry www.dli.mt.gov
· Department of Agriculture https://dojmt.gov/gaming/ 

· Liquor Licensing http://revenue.mt.gov/home/liquor
· Gambling Control Division https://dojmt.gov/gaming/   

· Government contracts SAM www.sam.gov or askSAM@gsa.gov 

History of Business: Previous owners and dates of ownership
· Buy/sell agreement in place if purchasing https://www.rocketlawyer.com/document/buy-sell-agreement.rl 
· Startup business – why it is being developed

Markets and Customers Served:
· Who will buy your product?
· Census information www.ceic.mt.gov or www.factfinder.census.gov
· Age, gender, interests

· Why will the buy from you?

· Price, quality, their wants and needs
Products or Services:  
· Products selling or providing
· How products are produced or sold
Trends:

Major economic, social, technological or regulatory trends often impact – both positively and negatively – the services, resources, and opportunities in region:  

· http://svc.mt.gov/gov/siteselector
· Aging population

· Out migration of youth

· Agricultural commodity fluctuation 

· Energy Production boom and bust cycle
Overall Goals:
90 days

· What you will accomplish in the next 90 days
1 year
· List of potential accomplishments
3 year
· List of potential accomplishments
SWOT Analysis: 
List each and how you will address or overcome them.

Strengths: (examples below)
· Self-motivated leadership

· Skilled staff

· Quality workmanship

· Strong financial portfolio

· Visible location

Weaknesses:
· Limited funding sources
· Weak economy

Opportunities:
· Social media marketing 

· Younger people returning to small communities

· Proactive planning

Threats:
· Loss of funding
· Need for diversification 
MARKETING PLAN
Industry: Product or service your company provides
· http://www.mplans.com/sample-marketing-plans.php#.V0Ms1jLrs3E 

Potential Customers:
· Who they are  
· Age, gender, interests
· Precise wants and needs as they relate to the produces

Competitive Analysis:
· Who is your competition 

· Name and location

· Owner, manager 

· How your business will be superior 
· Advantages  you have over your competition
· Regulations apply that apply
Market Demographics/Market Share:
· How much of the market can you count on to buy your product?

· What is your market share?

· How many people are in your area/how many other like businesses?
· http://svc.mt.gov/gov/siteselector 

· What research & development activities are you preforming or planning?
· www.netmba.com/marketing/market/segmentation 


Marketing and Sales Plan:
· Promotion plan

· Description of sale plan 
· Product

· Description of product or service

· Pricing
· Individual prices

·  Quantity prices

· Per hour, per piece, unit

· Job rate
· Purchasing plan & suppliers
· Name and address of suppliers
· Branding

· Logo and images 
· Attach picture of logo

· Letterhead

· Business cards
· Communicate with customers

· Direct mail, flyers

· Taglines

· Radio, TV

· List local stations
· Newspaper

· List local papers

· Personally, word-of-mouth

· Trade shows
· Social media

· Facebook

· Online methods
· Distribution Plan

· Directly from you

· From a distributor or other retailer

· Where  products or service are sold

· Storefront

· Description
· Website
· Link
· Equipment needed for  the business
· List fixtures

· List of electronics

· List of inventory

ORGANIZATIONAL PLAN
Management personnel: Qualifications for the job and salaries 
· Job Descriptions www.jobs.mt.gov 
· Each position

· Salaries 
· Hourly rates for each

· Employees you will need

· Skills they will need for the job
· Educational requirements 

· Who will train and supervise them
· Continuing education

· Benefits
Consultant Services: These are the services we will be using
· Accountant, address, phone number, email
· Attorney, address, phone number, email
· Insurance Agent, address, phone number, email
· Job Service www.jobs.mt.gov Policy and Procedure Manuel
Quality Control: Person in charge
· Discipline over all types of purchases

· Securing the best possible terms with vendors

· How will you keep your goods and services up to an expected level?

Time Management: 
· Delegate responsibility
· Prioritizing tasks

· Create accountability

· Sustain motivation

Facilities: Physical address
· Describe your location 
· Own or rent
· Condition of the facility
Suppliers: List the vendors you will be using
· Contact, addresses and phone number
· List the product you will purchase

Managing Inventory:
· Having the correct inventory on hand
· Having sufficient quantities (not too much or too little)
· Securing the best terms possible with the vendors
· Keeping inventory current
Managing finances and recordkeeping:
· Financial Program business will be using

· The business is using QuickBooks Pro for business

· Daily  accounting

· All deposits and checks are entered in QB on a daily basis

· Daily deposits
· Deposits are taken to the bank each night after work

· Monthly Reconciliation

·  Bank statement matched to QB totals monthly

· Debt Service

· Available cash to service debt on due dates, avoid additional interest  

Payroll:

· Submitting withholding  websites
· EFTPS online at  https://www.eftps.gov/eftps/ 

· 941 - Federal withholding, Medicare, Social Security

· 940 – Federal unemployment 

· ePass MT - https://app.mt.gov/epass/Authn/selectIDP.html
· Montana withholding

· UI eServices at https://uieservices.mt.gov/_/  ( log in ePass)

· Montana unemployment

· Statefund at https://montanastatefund.com/web/ 
· Workers Comp Insurance

· Quarterly reports, yearend reports & income taxes

· File annual report www.sbsb.com 

Billing and Collection Policies and Procedures:

· Bills are sent out bi-monthly – on the 15th and 30th of each month

· Payments are due the 10th of the following month

· Credit policies with priorities on collection before they are delinquent 
· Collections

· Credit policies with priorities on collection before they are delinquent 
· Late payments are assessed at 18% yearly average 

· Non-payments are sent to collection agency XYZ
License, permits or regulations that may affect your business:

· Independent Contractor Exemption Certificate ($125) 1-406-444-7734 www.erd.dli.mt.gov/wcregs/wcrdocs/icapplication.pdf 

· General Contractor License Reference Site www.contractor-license/org
· Department of Labor and Industry 1-406-841-2333 www.dli.mt.gov/ 

· Determine if you need a license – http://bsd.dli.mt.gov/license/license.asp 

· Government Contract, SAM www.sam.gov or information at www.fsd.gov
EXIT STRATEGY
Liquidation

· Walk away
· Have a “Going Out of Business” sale

· Pay off lenders and vendors

· Discount inventory and fixtures

· Put money in your pocket
Selling to a Friendly Buyer

· Pass the ownership to another true believer

· Preserve your legacy

The Acquisition

· Find another business that wants to buy yours and sell it 
· Sell the business and leave the kids money
SUCCESSION PLANNING

Choose Your Successor

· Examine all employees who have potential skill and ability to buy 

Develop a Formal Training Plan for Your Successor
· Identify the critical functions of the company
· Immerse your successor in the business of your company 
Establish a Timetable
· Set up a training timetable for the successor

· Set up a timetable for shifting control of the company

· Have clear understanding of what the coming roles and responsibilities are going to be when you move out of day-to-day operations.

Prepare Yourself for Retirement
· Outline a plan for your transition from officer and operations manager

· Begin your retirement plan early

Install Your Successor
· You owe it to your company's future and to yourself to install your successor in your lifetime. 
· Prepared to let your successor carry out the role for which he/she has been 
FINANCIAL PLAN
Historical Financial Statements:
· 3 years of personal 1040 tax forms

· 3 years of 1040 and Schedule C from the buyer
Current Balance Sheet:
· Financial condition of the business; Assets, Liabilities, & Net Worth
Sources and Uses:
· How much money you will need and where you propose to obtain it

Projected Cash Flow Spreadsheet:
· Monthly projected income statements for the first year by month 
· Yearly projected income for the second and third year

Profit and Loss statement
· Your profit and loss statement -revenue, costs, and your bottom line
Capital Equipment List 

· All equipment of value owned by the business that could be used as security for a loan
REQUEST FOR FINANCING
Amount, Purpose of Request, Collateral

· Dollar amount of project

· Description of the project

· List of what will be available for collateral

Sources and Uses of Funds

· List banks and personal equity 

· Breakdown of project costs

Repayment Plan

· Show how this will be loan be repaid
Debt Repayment Contingency Plan

· If things don’t work out, another plan of repayment

ATTACHMENTS

Resumes
· Owner

· Manager

Buy/Sell Agreement

· With the seller

· Contract Examples\Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Business.docx
Job Descriptions

· Each position

Personal Policy Manual

· www.Jobservices.dli.mt.gov 

Organizational Documents
· Articles of Incorporation

Disaster Plan

· Disaster Readiness Planning Worksheets
· http://sbdc.mt.gov/startup 
Safety Plan

· www.Jobservices.dli.mt.gov 

Name:


Role: Owner





Name:


Role:





Name:


Role:





Name:


Role:








